
1 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Meeting: Monday, 31st March 2014 at 6.30 pm  
in Civic Suite, North Warehouse, The Docks, Gloucester, GL1 2EP 

 
 

Membership: Cllrs. Lugg (Chair), Beeley (Vice-Chair), Llewellyn (Spokesperson), 
Haigh, Gravells, Wilson, S. Witts, Field, Williams, Dee, Taylor, 
Hansdot, Randle, Toleman and Chatterton 

Contact: Sonia Tucker 
Democratic Services Officer (Scrutiny Support) 
01452 396126 
sonia.tucker@gloucester.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 

1.   APOLOGIES  
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
To receive from Members, declarations of the existence of any disclosable pecuniary, or non-
pecuniary, interests and the nature of those interests in relation to any agenda item. Please 
see Agenda Notes. 

 

3.   MINUTES (Pages 5 - 12) 
 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 3 March 2014. 

 

4.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)  
 
To receive any questions from members of the public provided that a question does not relate 
to: 
 

 Matters which are the subject of current or pending legal proceedings, or 

 Matters relating to employees or former employees of the Council or comments in 
respect of individual Council Officers 

 



2 
 

5.   PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS (15 MINUTES)  
 
To receive any petitions and deputations provided that no such petition is in relation to: 
 

 Matters relating to individual Council Officers, or 

 Matters relating to current or pending legal proceedings 

 

6.   REVIEW OF 'CALL IN' PROCEDURE (Pages 13 - 32) 
 
To receive the report of the Head of Legal and Policy Development which proposes 
amendments to the grounds for call in and seeks formal endorsement of Procedure Rules for 
call in. 

 

7.   POSSIBLE TOPICS FOR TASK AND FINISH GROUPS  
 
Discussion item.  Members to explore possible topics for Task and Finish Groups and to 
decide if they wish to ask all Councillors for suggestions. 

 

8.   SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 33 - 34) 
 
To receive the current Scrutiny Work programme for information. 
 
Under this heading Members can consider other items they feel could be usefully explored 
that are not already in the programme. 
  

9.   UPDATE FROM MEMBERS WHO SIT AS CITY COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES 
ON OUTSIDE BODIES  
 
To receive verbal updates from any Members of the Committee who sit as City Council 
representatives on any of the outside bodies. 

 

10.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
Monday 23 June 2014 at 18.30 hours. 

 
 
 
 

 
................................................... 
Julian Wain 
Chief Executive 
 
Date of Publication: Friday, 21 March 2014 
 
 



 

 
 

NOTES 
 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
The duties to register, disclose and not to participate in respect of any matter in which a member 
has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest are set out in Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined in the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012 as follows – 
 
Interest 

 
Prescribed description 

 
Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on 
for profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other 
than from the Council) made or provided within the previous 12 
months (up to and including the date of notification of the 
interest) in respect of any expenses incurred by you carrying out 
duties as a member, or towards your election expenses. This 
includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between you, your spouse or civil 
partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or civil 
partner (or a body in which you or they have a beneficial interest) 
and the Council 
(a)   under which goods or services are to be provided or works 

are to be executed; and 
(b)   which has not been fully discharged 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the Council’s area. 
 
For this purpose “land” includes an easement, servitude, interest 
or right in or over land which does not carry with it a right for you, 
your spouse, civil partner or person with whom you are living as a 
spouse or civil partner (alone or jointly with another) to occupy 
the land or to receive income. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
Council’s area for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
 
(a)   the landlord is the Council; and 
(b)   the tenant is a body in which you, your spouse or civil 

partner or a person you are living with as a spouse or civil 
partner has a beneficial interest 

 
Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where – 

 
(a)   that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or 

land in the Council’s area and 
 
(b)   either – 



4 
 

i.   The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 
or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
body; or 

 
ii.   If the share capital of that body is of more than one 

class, the total nominal value of the shares of any one 
class in which you, your spouse or civil partner or 
person with whom you are living as a spouse or civil 
partner has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth 
of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
For this purpose, “securities” means shares, debentures, 
debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective 
investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services 
and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, 
other than money 
deposited with a building society. 
 

NOTE: the requirements in respect of the registration and disclosure of Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests and withdrawing from participating in respect of any matter 
where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest apply to your interests and those 
of your spouse or civil partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or 
civil partner where you are aware of their interest. 

 
Access to Information 
Agendas and reports can be viewed on the Gloucester City Council website: 
www.gloucester.gov.uk and are available to view five working days prior to the meeting 
date. 
 
For further details and enquiries about this meeting please contact Sonia Tucker, 01452 
396126, sonia.tucker@gloucester.gov.uk . 
 
For general enquiries about Gloucester City Council’s meetings please contact Democratic 
Services, 01452 396125, democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk. 
 
If you, or someone you know cannot understand English and need help with this 
information, or if you would like a large print, Braille, or audio version of this information 
please call 01452 396396. 

 

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by council 
staff. It is vital that you follow their instructions:  
 You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts; 
 Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 
 Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building; gather at the 

assembly point in the car park and await further instructions; 
 Do not re-enter the building until told by a member of staff or the fire brigade that it is 

safe to do so. 

 
 

http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/
mailto:sonia.tucker@gloucester.gov.uk
mailto:democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk


OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
03.03.14 

 

 

 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MEETING : Monday, 3rd March 2014 

   

PRESENT : Cllrs. Lugg (Chair), Beeley (Vice-Chair), Llewellyn (Spokesperson), 
Haigh, Gravells, Wilson, Williams, Dee, Taylor, Hansdot, Toleman 
and Chatterton  

   
Others in Attendance 
  
Councillor Paul James, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member 
for Regeneration and Culture 
Councillor Sajid Patel, Cabinet Member for the Environment 
Councillor Frederick Wood, Cabinet Member for Performance and 
Resources 
Mr Martin Shields, Director of Services and Neighbourhoods 
Mr Peter Gillett, Director of Resources 
Mr Ross Cook, Head of Neighbourhood Services 
Ms Sadie Neal, Business Improvement Manager 
Mr Jason Smith, Chief Executive of Marketing Gloucester 
  
 

APOLOGIES : Cllrs.  S Witts, Field, and Randle 

 
 

91. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Hansdot declared a personal interest in agenda item 6, Open Space 
Strategy 2014-17 by virtue of his role as a Trustee on the Barton and Tredworth 
Community Trust. 
 
Councillor Dee declared a personal interest in agenda item 6, Open Space Strategy 
2014-17 because of his involvement with Podsmead Playing Fields. 
 
 
 
 

92. MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meetings held on 6 January 2014 and 3 February 2014 were 
approved as correct records and signed by the Chair. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
03.03.14 

 

 

 
93. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)  

 
Ms Kay Powell, a local resident, addressed the Committee.  Ms Powell expressed 
dissatisfaction with the written response she had received from the Cabinet 
Member for the Environment relating to public open space issues she had raised at 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 3 February 2014.  Ms Powell had further 
questions relating to these matters namely:- 
 

 The calculation of the whole of St James’ Park including the City Farm as 
public open space. 

 That most of the area covered by the City Farm was inaccessible to the 
public. 

 The possibility of the large grassed area between Trier Way and Midland 
Road being identified as public open space. 

 The position of the community garden next to the Anglo-Asian Centre which 
was not included in the document. 

 The suitability of a MUGA at St James’ Park, bearing in mind its current use 
as an informal football pitch. 

 What ‘practical reasons’ had prevented public use of the land next to the 
Trust Centre. 

 
Councillor Patel, Cabinet Member for Environment, thanked Ms Powell for her 
questions.  He responded that the calculation of St James’ Park would be revisited 
when ward profile work was carried out; that the City Farm was open to the public; 
that he would investigate issues regarding the Anglo-Asian Centre and the 
proposed MUGA at St James’ Park and respond to Ms Powell in writing; that anti-
social behaviour had necessitated the locking of a gate at the Trust Centre but that 
the area was accessible by any member of the public on request and he would 
publicise this fact; and finally that he had never been a Trustee of the Barton and 
Tredworth Community Trust. 
 
Councillor James, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Regeneration and 
Culture commented that the City Council had sold the land to the Anglo-Asian 
Centre and that the Centre was under no obligation to convert it into a garden. 
 

94. PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS (15 MINUTES)  
 
There were no petitions or deputations. 
 

95. OPEN SPACE STRATEGY  2014-2019  
 
The Chair welcomed Councillor Paul James, Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Regeneration and Culture and Councillor Sajid Patel, Cabinet Member 
for Environment to the meeting. 
 
A question was asked as to why the report author was not present.  Mr Ross Cook, 
Head of Neighbourhood Services, confirmed that it was not normal practice for a 
junior member of staff to attend such meetings and that he was present as the 
responsible officer for that service. 
 

Page 6



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
03.03.14 

 

 

Members considered a report which sought formal approval for a new Open Space 
Strategy for the period 2014-2019 and which set out a robust, strategic framework 
for managing public open spaces in the City following public consultation between 
May and July 2013. 
 
General comments arising from the debate have been listed below and are followed 
by points raised on the individual Ward profiles and a summary of the discussion 
including the Cabinet Member’s response to the points made. 
 
General comments on the Strategy Document 
  

 The possibility of Ward boundaries being changed. 

 Problems caused by unadopted land on modern housing estates being 
turned into ‘jungles’ and equally problems on established estates such as 
Abbey where areas had become overgrown.   

 The fact that some public open spaces such as Plock Court were regularly 
impassable because of flood water. 

 Disappointment was expressed that the opportunity had not been taken to 
exploit opportunities to work with health partners to publicise the importance 
of open spaces for health and healthy living and in order to address 
inequalities.   

 
Abbey 
 
Members expressed disappointment that the profile did not reflect all the public 
open space that was available within the Ward.  Reference was made to the 
Hucclecote Hay Meadows which were considered to have been given a low profile 
in the report.   There was concern at the reference to undeveloped land at the 
Wheatridge which might be developed for housing and it was believed that the 
language used should be reviewed to enforce the need for provision of public open 
space as part of any future development. 
 
Barnwood 
 
Members considered that there were insufficient details on the potential for 
improvements in this Ward.  It was noted that the Saintbridge Balancing Pond was 
also enjoyed by Abbey residents.  There was a query as to whether the King 
George V Playing Field was situated in Hucclecote rather than Barnwood. 
 
Barton and Tredworth 
 
It was acknowledged that the Ward fell seriously short in terms of the Council’s 
adopted standard for open space quantity.  Matters discussed during Public 
Question Time were noted and there was no further debate. 
 
Elmbridge – no comments 
 
Grange 
 

Page 7



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
03.03.14 

 

 

Members commented on the lack of detail available within this profile.  It was noted 
that an error relating to GR5, Holmleigh Park, had still not been corrected from the 
previous draft.   
 
Hucclecote 
 
Members asked for reference to be made to a bund which acted as a buffer for the 
M5.  It was noted that land at HU3 next to Hucclecote Rugby Club was derelict and 
that some of this land had been allocated to the rugby club for training. 
 
Kingsholm and Wotton 
 
The importance of the former Civil Service Sports Ground as a potential public open 
space was discussed. 
 
Longlevens 
 
Concern was expressed over flooding at Plock Court and latterly at Innsworth. 
 
Matson and Robinswood - No comments. 
 
Moreland - No comments. 
 
Podsmead 
 
It was pointed out that Blackbridge was originally created for the school and that 
reference to this should be edited.  It was noted that Winget was separate to Tuffley 
Park and that Blackbridge was not accessible from Tuffley Avenue.  It was further 
noted that some of the pitches at PO4 were not being used.  Under this heading 
Members were informed that this area of the City was being considered as a 
potential Southern Sports Hub. 
 
Quedgeley Fieldcourt 
 
There was a request for the language used relating to Needham Avenue to be 
revisited in order to allay any anxiety to residents.   
 
Quedgeley Severn Vale 
 
The existence of the A38 as a barrier to residents accessing public open spaces 
was noted. 
 
Tuffley 
 
It was pointed out that a piece of land off Grange Road was not a public open 
space.  It was requested that reference made to undeveloped farm land at Grange 
Road being identified for housing in the Joint Core Strategy should be revised as no 
decisions had been made and the land remained as a public open space.   
 
Westgate 
 

Page 8



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
03.03.14 

 

 

There was uncertainty as to whether all the public open spaces had been identified, 
namely land on west side of Hempsted Lane, land in front of Newark Farm, land in 
Rectory Lane, land in Hempsted lane by the river, and land at Severn Trent sewer 
works.  There was a perception that the Severn Trent Nature Reserve and 
Netheridge Farm were the same and should be marked as one item and it was 
pointed out that the Barn Owl Centre took up land at the Netheridge Reserve. 
 
Conclusions 
 
Councillor Patel thanked Members for their comments and stressed that he was 
keen to protect and enhance public open spaces within the City.  Points raised by 
the Committee would be included in the Strategy and Members and residents would 
be engaged in the proposed Action Plans for each Ward. 
 
The Committee responded with the following comments:- 
 

 Members believed that there should be engagement with health and leisure 
partners and that this should be reflected in the Strategy. 

 Members considered that the Strategy contained inaccuracies and 
ambiguities which should be corrected. 

 Members requested that the language used relating to parcels of land which 
might be possibly interpreted by the public as being earmarked for disposal 
should be revisited.  

 
The Committee requested that the document should be withdrawn from the Cabinet 
agenda for 5 March 2014 to allow revisions to be made.  Councillor James replied 
that he would consider the Committee’s views and discuss the matter with his 
Cabinet colleagues. 
 
RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO CABINET:  That the Open Space Strategy for 
2014-19 should not be approved by Cabinet on 5 March 2014 as it requires further 
revision. 
 

96. CHANGES TO THE COUNCIL'S TREE MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES  
 
Councillor Patel presented Members with a report which sought adoption of revised 
tree management guidelines for City Council owned trees.  The guidelines had 
been updated to address concerns regarding trees and their potential impact upon 
third party property interests. 
 
The Committee discussed the following matters:- 
 

 Whether there would be a possibility in the future for residents to arrange 
their own pruning of trees provided there were no objections from 
neighbours. 

 Clarity was sought on which trees were the responsibility of the City Council 
as opposed to Gloucestershire Highways.   It was noted that the proposed 
policy could only be applied to City Council owned trees. 

 The effect of tree roots planted on grass verges on neighbouring properties. 

Page 9



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
03.03.14 

 

 

 The negative effect of imposing trees on residents’ health, particularly where 
individuals were elderly or housebound.  It was considered that this should 
be reflected in the policy. 

 The frustrations experienced by Members when trying to deal with 
complaints by residents in their Wards regarding dangerous or out of control 
trees. 

 
The Committee welcomed the report. 
 
RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO CABINET:  That the report be noted.  
 

97. FUTURE OF GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL EVENTS CO-ORDINATION  
 
The Chair welcomed Mr Jason Smith, Chief Executive of Marketing Gloucester. 
 
The Director of Services and Neighbourhoods presented Members with a report 
which sought approval for changes to the City’s Events Programme and its delivery.  
The report proposed the establishment of a Central Events Team which would be 
based at Marketing Gloucester Limited’s premises and would provide a single point 
of contact for all event queries and advisory requests. 
 
Whilst most of the recommendations in the report were welcomed by the 
Committee, there was concern over the proposal for the Central Events Team to 
co-ordinate the logistical and operational side of the Council’s Civic events, 
including the administration of invitations.  Members stressed that civic functions 
were totally different to the other events currently organised by Marketing 
Gloucester and required a specific skillset in order to ensure that the correct 
protocols and formalities were observed, particularly when arranging Royal visits.  
There were reservations that the proposed Central Events Team would not have 
the capacity to deal with an important and high profile event such as Remembrance 
Sunday in November when there were several other events going on at that time.  
The Committee considered that there should be continuity in the support given to 
the Mayor’s Office and proposed that this should continue to be provided by a 
member of the Executive Support Team as the Team had nurtured relationships 
with the relevant organisations.   Members expressed concern that the role of the 
Civic Office might be undermined.  Reference was made to the Sheriff’s role which 
was of equal importance. 
 
The Director of Services and Neighbourhoods responded to these comments by 
assuring Members that there would be a proper hand-over to Marketing Gloucester 
and that none of the knowledge and expertise garnered by the Executive Support 
Team would be lost.  He added that the Team had produced templates and 
processes to support each event which would be provided to Marketing Gloucester.   
He stressed that there was no intention to undermine the Civic Office in any way.   
He explained that the Executive Support Team was already stretched in having to 
provide resources for other officers and referred to a recent inventory of the number 
of hours spent by the team in organising Civic events.  He believed that the Mayor 
would receive an improved service from the new arrangement and pointed out that 
only six key events were transferring to Marketing Gloucester and that all the other 
Mayoral duties would remain with the Executive Support Team. 
 

Page 10



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
03.03.14 

 

 

Members discussed other matters arising from the report:- 
 

 Clarity was sought on the proposal for management of the events budget 
and a proportion of the Civic hospitality budget by Marketing Gloucester.  
The Director of Services and Neighbourhoods explained that the transfer of 
budget related to the six key events being passed to Marketing Gloucester 
and that a suitable service level agreement would be drawn up. 

 It was stated that Marketing Gloucester’s prime focus should be on 
marketing the City  

 Reference was made to the impending review of the Guildhall. There was a 
concern expressed that the report might be perceived as pre-empting the 
outcome of that review.  The Director of Services and Neighbourhoods 
responded that the Guildhall Manager had been consulted on the proposals 
and was supportive of them as events outside of the Guildhall were a 
distraction and drained their resources. 

 Members queried whether Marketing Gloucester would have the capacity to 
deliver any extra events to those set out in the programme. 

 
Suspension of Council Procedure Rule 6 
 
On the motion of the Chair, and in accordance with the Constitution, the 
Committee resolved that the meeting be extended beyond two hours. 
 
Mr Jason Smith, Chief Executive of Marketing Gloucester, addressed the 
Committee.  Mr Smith referred to the co-ordinated calendar of events which had 
been sent to all Councillors.  Members welcomed the co-ordinated calendar. 
 
Members brought the debate to a close by acknowledging the comments of the 
Director of Services and Neighbourhoods.  The Committee resolved not to endorse 
recommendation 2.2 (5) and requested Cabinet to consider retaining the 
management of the Civic events in-house with the role being carried out by one 
member of the Executive Support Team. 
 
RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO CABINET:   
(1) That the recommendations shown at 2.2 of the report be endorsed with the 

exception of 2.2 (5). 
(2) That management of the Council's Civic events remains in-house and is 

carried out by one member of the Executive Support Team 
 

98. DRAFT COUNCIL PLAN 2014 -2017  
 
The Chair welcomed Councillor Wood, Cabinet Member for Performance and 
Resources to the meeting. 
 
Members considered an updated draft of the Council Plan for 2014-2017 which 
detailed the priorities and plans for delivery for the Council for the next three years 
and the performance measures to be set against the proposed plan.   
 
The Committee was informed that the Committee’s previous comments had been 
incorporated into the current draft and that the document would continue to be a 
‘work in progress’.  The section on the three year money plan had been revised and 

Page 11



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
03.03.14 

 

 

there was now more emphasis on health and the provision of housing.  It was noted 
that whilst a five year money plan had been agreed at Council on 27 February 2014 
that the document covered a three year period to 2017. 
 
Reference was made to trade waste left out all day in the City Centre and 
Councillor James was requested to add a performance measure to address this.  
Councillor James pointed out that there was a measure for cleanliness within the 
document, but that he was willing to consider including this measure. 
 
RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO CABINET:  That the report be noted. 
 
 

99. SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME AND FORWARD DATES FOR NEXT 
MUNICIPAL YEAR  
 
RESOLVED:  That the Scrutiny Work Programme and Forward Dates for next 
municipal year be noted. 
 

100. UPDATE FROM MEMBERS WHO SIT AS CITY COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES 
ON OUTSIDE BODIES  
 
There was insufficient time to consider this item.  
 
RESOLVED:  To defer the item to the next meeting of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 31 March 2014 
. 

101. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
Monday 31 March 2014 at 18.30 hours. 
 
 

Time of commencement:  18.30 hours 
Time of conclusion:  20.57 hours 
Chair 
 

Page 12



 
 

Meeting: Overview and Scrutiny Committee Date: 31 March 2014 

Subject: Review of ‘Call In’ Procedure 

Report Of: Head of Legal and Policy Development   

Wards Affected: None   

Key Decision: No Budget/Policy Framework: No 

Contact Officer: Sue Mullins, Head of Legal and Policy Development & 
Monitoring Officer 

 Email: sue.mullins@gloucester.gov.uk  Tel: 396110 

Appendices: 1.  Extract from Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules on call-
in 

2. Call-In arrangements approved by Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 14 July 2010 

3. Suggested Call-in Procedure Rules (containing sub-
appendices A, B, and C) 

4. Suggested Call-in Request Pro-Forma 

 
1.0 Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To consider amendments to the grounds for call-in and seek formal endorsement of 

Procedure Rules for call-in.  
 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to consider the information contained in 

the report and to RECOMMEND to Council that:  
 

(1) the grounds for call-in set out in the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 
be amended as set out in paragraph 3.5 of the report;  

(2) the ‘Call In’ Procedure Rules set out in Appendix 3 of this report be approved 
and included in the Constitution as part of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules; 

(3) the Call-in Request Pro Forma set out in Appendix 4 of this report be 
approved; 

(4) the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules be amended as set out in 
paragraph 3.9 of the report; 

 
3.0 Background and Key Issues 
 
3.1 ‘Call In’ is rarely used at the City Council as  Members and Officers work together to 

ensure that decisions are robust and taken in an open and transparent manner.  
However, on occasion, decisions are ‘called in’ and in those instances, there needs 
to be a clear understanding and procedure for Members and Officers to follow. 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6

mailto:sue.mullins@gloucester.gov.uk


3.2 At its meeting on 22 October 2013, the Constitutional and Electoral Working Group 
considered the Council’s call-in process following a recent use of call-in by 
Members. As a result of the call-in, it was identified that, the grounds for call-in were 
not as clear as they could be and that, although the procedure used for the call-in 
had been approved by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 2010, the 
procedure had not been formally endorsed by the Council. The Working Group 
made a number of comments on the procedure used for the call-in and asked the 
Head of Legal and Policy Development to review the Constitution and present a 
revised Call-in Procedure to the Group at its next meeting for approval.  This report 
contains the agreed revised draft Call-In Procedure approved by the 
Constitutional and Electoral Working Group at its meeting on 28 January 
2014.  

 
 Grounds for Call-in 
 
3.3 The current grounds for call-in are set out in paragraph 14(c) of the Overview and 

Scrutiny Procedure Rules (shown at Appendix 1). They are:- 
 

‘Where it is considered that the proposed action is contrary to, or not in 
accordance with, the Council’s policy; or the Cabinet, individual Cabinet Member 
or an Officer acting under delegated authority from the Cabinet did not take the 
decision in accordance with the principles set out in Article 12 (Decision 
Making), or was contrary to officer advice then the following call in arrangements 
will apply’. 

 
3.4 Having researched the call-in grounds in a number of other authorities, it seems that 

there is a great deal of variation between authorities on when call-in can be used. It 
is important that an appropriate balance is maintained between the Overview and 
Scrutiny’s power to hold the Executive to account and ensuring that decisions can 
be made and implemented within a reasonable period of time. 

 
3.5 It is considered that the current grounds for call-in within the Constitution as set out 

in 3.3 above could be extended and clarified as follows to meet the needs of this 
authority: 

 
‘Where it is considered that the decision is contrary to, or not in accordance with 
the principles of the Council’s approved or adopted policies; or is not in 
accordance with the Council’s budget; or in making the decision, the Cabinet, 
individual Cabinet Member or Officer taking a Key decision under delegated 
authority from the Cabinet did not take the decision in accordance with the 
principles set out in Article 12 (Decision Making); or in making the decision, the 
Cabinet, individual Cabinet Member or an Officer acting under delegated 
authority from the Cabinet took account of an irrelevant matter or failed to take 
account of a relevant matter which, in the opinion of the Chief Executive and 
Monitoring Officer, had (or would have had) a significant bearing on that 
decision; or the decision was contrary to officer advice’. 

 
Call-in procedure 
 

3.6 The call-in procedure used at the most recent call-in and as approved by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee is set out in Appendix 2. The Constitutional and 

Page 14



Electoral Working Group at its meeting on 22 October 2013 made the following 
suggested amendments to the call-in procedure: 

 

 that the decision-maker should be the penultimate speaker and that the 
Member requesting the call-in should then sum up; 

 that Members should be invited to move any amendments or additions to the 
reasons for any referral before the vote to support the call-in is taken;  

 that it would be helpful to have a discussion on the call-in without it being 
referred to Council.  It was suggested that the decision maker should be 
present during the debate and have the opportunity to comment as to where 
the call-in should be referred. 

 
3.7 The Call-in Procedure Rules suggested at Appendix 3 to the report address these 

issues raised by the Working Group and remove the two stage decision-making 
process contained in the Council’s current call-in procedure, which did not allow 
effective consideration of call-in requests by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
3.8 In order to assist Members making call-in requests and to ensure that relevant 

information is provided within the timescale for calling-in decisions, it is suggested 
that a standard request form is used. A suggested proforma for call-in requests is 
set out in Appendix 4 to the report. 

 
3.9 As decisions which can be called in can include officer Key decisions, it is 

suggested that the relevant part of paragraph 14(c) of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules is amended to allow officers to attend and speak at the 
Committee. The proposed changes are: 

 
When the Executive decision comes before the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 
the following persons shall have a right to attend and to speak at the Committee:- 

 - any one or more Members having requested the call-in; 

 - the Leader, the Deputy Leader and/or the relevant Cabinet Member having 
portfolio responsibility for the matter under consideration 

 - any officer who took the Key decision under consideration. 
 

3.10 It is considered that Overview and Scrutiny Committee should be consulted on the 
proposed changes to their Procedure Rules before this matter is referred to Council. 
If the Committee suggests substantive changes to the Procedure Rules set out in 
Appendix 3 to this report, the matter will be brought back to the Working Group. 

 
4.0 Alternative Options Considered 
 
4.1 The Council has to have arrangements to enable ‘call-in’ of decisions taken by the 

Executive so there is no option to remove these provisions. However, the Council 
can determine its own call-in arrangements provided they enable effective call-in to 
take place. An alternative option is to retain the current grounds for ‘call in’ and the 
call-in process set out in Appendices 1 and 2 to the report.  

 
5.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
5.1 Following the  recent ‘call in’ and the practical application of the Council’s process, it 

was felt that there needed to be further clarity in the Constitution on what could be 

Page 15



‘called in’ and the reasons why, together with improvements to the process for the 
consideration of the called-in item by Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
5.2 Research has been undertaken and best practice considered to ensure that the 

Council’s Constitution is robust in this area. 
 
6.0 Future Work and Conclusions 
 
6.1 Subject to the recommendations of Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the revised 

procedure will be presented to Council and any required changes made to the 
Constitution. 

 
6.2 If the procedure is approved, a flowchart of the call-in procedure will be produced to 

aid understanding of the call-in process. 
 
7.0 Financial Implications 
 
7.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
8.0 Legal Implications 
 
8.1 The main legislative provision governing ‘call-in’ is Section 9F of the Local 

Government Act 2000, as inserted by the Localism Act 2011, which allows an 
overview and scrutiny committee power to review or scrutinise any executive 
decisions which have been made and recommend that they are reconsidered by 
those responsible; or else to arrange for the Council to review the decision and, 
where necessary, ask those responsible for the decision to reconsider.  

 
9.0 Risk & Opportunity Management Implications  
 
9.1 Having documented call-in procedure rules helps to ensure that the Council’s 

decision-making processes are clear and transparent. Without such clarity, there is 
a risk that the call-in process will not be effective or will not be conducted in an 
appropriate way. 

 
10.0  People Impact Assessment (PIA):  
 
10.1 The PIA Screening Stage was completed and did not identify any potential or actual 

negative impact, therefore a full PIA was not required. 
 
11.0 Other Corporate Implications 

 
11.1 None specific to the report. 
 
Background Documents: 
 
Knowles on Local Authority Meetings: A Manual of Law and Practice  
 

Page 16



 
Appendix 1  

[Extract from Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules] 
 
14. CALL-IN 
 
 Call-in should only be used in exceptional circumstances, such as where Members 

have evidence which suggests that the Cabinet did not take the decision in 
accordance with the principles set out in Article 12 (Decision Making). 

 
(a) When a decision is made by the Cabinet, an individual Cabinet Member or a 

Committee of the Cabinet, or an Executive decision is made by an officer 
with delegated authority from the Cabinet, or an Area Committee or under 
joint arrangements, the decision shall be published, including where possible 
by electronic means, and shall be available at the main offices of the Council 
normally within two days of being made.  The Chair of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee will be sent copies of the records of all such decisions within the 
same timescale, by the person responsible for publishing the decision.  

(b) The Minutes will indicate whether matters are subject to delegated action by 
officers (and if so whom) or for decision by the Council. 

(c) Where it is considered that the proposed action is contrary to, or not in 
accordance with, the Council’s policy, or the Cabinet, individual Cabinet 
Member or an Officer acting under delegated authority from the Cabinet did 
not take the decision in accordance with the principles set out in Article 12 
(Decision Making) or was contrary to officer advice, then the following call in 
arrangements will apply:- 

 The Head of Paid Service, in consultation with the Monitoring Officer, 
must agree that the call-in complies with the criteria set out in the 
Constitution in order that it can proceed. 

 Within five working days of the publication of an Executive decision, any 
five Members of the Council may request reference of the minute to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee for consideration.  

 The request shall be communicated to the Corporate Director of 
Resources in writing and signed by at least five Members, or by 
separate communication in the same terms by five Members.  As an 
alternative, the request may be communicated separately in electronic 
form provided that the Corporate Director of Resources is satisfied with 
proof of identity of each individual Member. 

 The Corporate Director of Resources will, as soon as practicable, 
communicate the request to:- 

   - the relevant officer identified in the Minute 

   - the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Chair (or Vice Chair in their 
absence). 

   - the Leader of the Council or Deputy Leader in their absence. 

 

 Upon receipt of notification the Chair (or Vice Chair) shall convene a 
special meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee within ten 
working days of the date of notification by the Corporate Director of 
Resources, unless there is a meeting of the Committee already 

Page 17



programmed within twenty-one days of the notification, in which case 
the matter shall be referred to that programmed meeting. 

 When the Executive decision comes before the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, the following persons shall have a right to attend and to 
speak at the Committee:- 

 - any one or more Members having requested the call-in; 

 - the Leader, the Deputy Leader and/or the relevant Cabinet Member 
having portfolio responsibility for the matter under consideration. 

  

 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall be entitled to receive 
copies of any reports as set out in the Access to Information Procedure 
Rules in Part 4 of the Constitution. 

 In the event of a call-in of a Cabinet Minute the relevant officer shall not 
exercise his/her delegated powers on the matter before it has been 
considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and re-considered 
by the Cabinet in light of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s 
conclusions and any recommendations. 

 No matter which has been the subject of a call-in may be subject to a 
second call-in. 

(d) Where an Executive decision has been taken by an Area Committee then the 
right of call-in shall extend to any other Area Committee which resolves to 
refer a decision which has been made but not implemented to the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee for consideration in accordance with these 
provisions. An Area Committee may only request the Corporate Director of 
Resources to call-in the decision if it is of the opinion that the decision will 
have an adverse effect on the area to which it relates.  All other provisions 
relating to call-in shall apply as if the call-in had been exercised by Members 
of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
15. CALL-IN AND URGENCY 

 
The call-in procedure set out above shall not apply where the decision being taken 
by the Executive is urgent.  A decision will be urgent if any delay likely to be 
caused by the call-in process would (e.g.) seriously prejudice the Council’s or the 
publics’ interests.  The record of the decision, and notice by which it is made public 
shall state whether in the opinion of the decision-making person or body, the 
decision is an urgent one, and therefore not subject to call-in.  The Mayor must 
agree both that the decision proposed is reasonable in all the circumstances and 
to it being treated as an urgent matter.  In the absence of the Mayor, the Sheriff 
and Deputy Mayor’s consent shall be required.  In the absence of both, the Head 
of Paid Service or his/her nominee’s consent shall be required.  Decisions taken 
as a matter of urgency must be reported to the next available meeting of the 
Council, together with the reasons for urgency. 
 
The operation of the provisions relating to call-in and urgency shall be monitored 
annually, and a report submitted to Council with proposals for review if necessary. 

Page 18



 
APPENDIX 2 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
Procedure to be followed at a meeting when considering a Call-in  
 
The Chair will open the meeting.  
 
1. Reasons for the Call-in  
 
The Members who “Called-in” the decision will be asked to explain why they have done so and 
what they feel should be reviewed. They shall be allowed up to 15 minutes in total to 
present their case. It shall be up to them to determine how they wish to use their time, they 
may ask one speaker to speak or share the time among several speakers as they see fit.  
 
Members of the Committee may ask questions of clarification at this point. However 
there is no opportunity for cross-examination  
 
2. Decision-maker’s response  
 
The Leader of the Council / Cabinet Member will respond to the reasons given for the Call-in. 
15 minutes shall be allowed to respond on behalf of the decision-maker(s). It shall be up 
to them to decide how to use this allocation. The relevant Cabinet Member may make the 
presentation or they may divide the time between several speakers as they see fit.  
 
Members of the Committee may ask questions of clarification at this point. However 
there is no opportunity for cross-examination  
 
3. Consideration by the Committee  
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will then discuss the matter. Members may ask further 
questions of the Members who submitted the Call-in or the decision-makers during the debate. 
The Members making the call in and the decision-maker will not normally speak during the 
debate, except to answer questions.  
 
4. Summing-Up  
 
When the Chair considers that the matter has been debated for a reasonable length of time, 
both the decision-maker and one of the Members making the Call-in will be offered the 
opportunity to make any final comments on the matter and to sum up.  
Each side will be allowed five minutes for this purpose.  
 
5. The Vote  
 
The matter will then move to the vote. The first issue for consideration is whether, in light of the 
case presented by the Members making the Call-in and any other points made during the 
debate, Members wish to refer the decision for further consideration.  
 
6. If the Vote to support the Call-in is lost  
 
If Members vote NO at this stage, the call-in is ended. The matter will not be referred back and 
the original decision may be implemented.  
 

Page 19



 
 
7. If the Vote to support the Call-in is carried  
 
If Members vote IN FAVOUR of referring the matter for reconsideration, they must vote on the 
following matters in turn:  
 
Where to refer the matter –  
 
Members must decide whether the decision should be referred back for reconsideration 
directly to the original decision-maker (i.e. to the Cabinet) OR to refer the matter to City 
Council with a request that they decide whether to refer the matter back to the original 
decision-maker for reconsideration.  
 
The Chair will ask members to vote in favour of either:  
 
(i) Reference directly back to the original decision-maker  
 
OR  
(ii) Reference back via the City Council  
 
Reasons for referring the matter back –  
 
The Chair will then put to the meeting that the matter be referred back to the original decision-
maker (or to the City Council, as the case may be) for the reasons set out in the call-in 
request.  
 
Members will then be invited to move any amendments or additions to those reasons. 
Members may also move any specific recommendations or issues they would like the original 
decision-maker or Council to consider.  
 
Members must agree on the factors the decision-maker (or Council) are to be asked to 
consider. The matter may not be referred for reconsideration without reasons being given.  
 
8. Advising the Committee of Action taken  
 

Where a decision has been referred back to the decision-maker (or Council), a report of 
actions taken will be presented to a future meeting of the Committee.  
 
[Approved by Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 14 July 2010]

Page 20



 
APPENDIX 3 

Call-in Procedure Rules 
 
What is ‘Call In’ 
 
Where there is concern about a decision which has just been taken, there is a formal 
procedure to allow it to be “called in” so members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
can review it before the decision is implemented. It is a key way of holding the Cabinet to 
account. A called-in decision cannot be implemented until it has been considered by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, which can examine the issue and question the 
decision-taker on the actions taken. 
 
Call-in is intended to be used only in exceptional circumstances, the procedure being seen 
as a last resort through which Councillors may demand scrutiny of a decision they believe 
to be contrary to the Council’s policies or budget or the principles of decision making. 
 

Who can call in a decision? 
 
Any councillor who is not a member of the Cabinet can start the call-in procedure. 
Decisions can be called in by five individual councillors. 
 
What can be called-in? 
 
Call-in powers relate to Executive (Cabinet) functions. Subject to the exceptions listed 
below, any decision made by the Cabinet or a key decision made by an officer with 
delegated authority from the Cabinet may be called-in. 
 
What can’t be called-in? 
 
The following categories of decision cannot be called-in: 
 

 A decision which is not a Key decision, and which has been taken by an Individual 
Cabinet Member or an officer under delegated powers; 

 A decision which the decision-taker has certified as urgent (giving reasons) in 
accordance with the Council’s Procedure Rules; 

 A decision relating to a matter which has already been the subject of a call-in during 
the previous six months; 

 Any decision relating to a non-Executive function, whether taken by a Committee or 
an officer under delegated powers; 

 A decision by, or to be taken by, the full Council; or 

 A decision taken at stage 4 of the call-in procedure (see below). 
 
In particular, it should be noted that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee cannot 
scrutinize individual decisions made by, or on behalf of, the Council’s regulatory 
committees (e.g. decisions relating to development control, licensing, registration, 
consents and other permissions). Nor can it scrutinize decisions relating to individual 
members of staff. 
 
Furthermore, although they may be key decisions (and included in the Forward Plan), 
decisions taken by the Cabinet when preparing annual budget or new policy proposals for 
submission to the full Council will not be subject to call-in. In these circumstances the full 

Page 21



Council is responsible for the final decision and, in any event, the Council’s Procedure 
Rules require that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee must be consulted by the 
Cabinet, even if it has been involved earlier in the process. 
 
When can a decision be called-in? 
 
It is important that the call-in process is not abused, nor causes unreasonable delay; the 
main tool of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to improve the delivery of policies and 
services should be detailed reviews, rather than call-ins. 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules in Part Four of the Council’s Constitution 
specify formal safeguards for the use of call-in. The Constitution also suggests that call-ins 
should be reserved for exceptional circumstances. 
 
Broadly, a decision can be called-in when councillors: 
 

 Believe it may be contrary to the normal requirements for decision-making 

 Believe it may be contrary to the Council’s agreed policy framework and/or budget 

 Need further information from the decision-taker to explain why it was taken. 
 

Call-in checklist 
 
The above rules and criteria can be brought together in the checklist of questions which 
are set out at Appendix A to this document. Councillors can use this checklist when they 
are considering a call-in. Questions 2 - 5 can also be used by report authors to test draft 
reports for Cabinet. 
 
How does Call-in work? 
 
Every decision which is subject to potential call-in cannot be implemented until the end of 
the call-in period. The call-in period lasts for five working days after notice of the decision 
is published by the Chief Executive. 
 
Decision notices will normally be published within two working days of the day on which 
the decision was made. 
 
 
The call-in procedure itself follows four stages. 
 
STAGE 1 
 
A valid call-in request must be submitted in accordance with the current rules in the 
Constitution. The request must say who is making the call-in and to which decision it 
relates. It must also give reasons why the decision is being called in, what action those 
calling-in the decision would like to see the decision-maker take to address the concerns 
outlined in the call-in, or how the original decision should be varied, and details of attempts 
those calling-in the decision made to discuss the issue with the relevant Portfolio Holder or 
Leader of the Council in advance of calling the decision in. A pro-forma for call-in requests 
is available. 
 
Requests may also be submitted by electronic mail, fax or by telephone. If the call-in is to 
be submitted by e-mail, only one councillor need submit the actual form. However, 

Page 22



individual e-mails (or letters) in support of the request must also be submitted by the other 
councillors specified on the form before the end of the call-in period. Call-ins submitted by 
fax or telephone must be followed up in writing with the required number of signatures 
before the end of the call-in period. 
 
STAGE 2 
 
When the officers receive a valid call-in request with respect to a decision, then that 
decision may not be implemented until that decision has completed the call-in procedure. 
The officers will refer the call-in to the next available meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. A special meeting may also be convened if appropriate (e.g. in cases of 
urgency). 
 
Councillors who have requested the call-in will have the right to address the Committee 
when it deals with the issue. 

 

STAGE 3 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will consider the called-in decision and decide to 
take one of the following courses of action (the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s 
decision should not be adjourned or delayed without an exceptional reason): 
 

 To allow the decision to be implemented without further delay. 

 To refer the decision back to the Cabinet (irrespective of who the original decision-
taker was) together with the observations of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
The Cabinet will then take the final decision, and that decision may not be called in. 

 To request the Cabinet to allow further time for the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to consider the issue and make observations at a later date. 

 To seek the advice of the Head of Legal and Policy Development and/or the Chief 
Finance Officer as to whether the decision is contrary to, or not wholly in 
accordance with, the policy framework or the budget and, if applicable, to refer the 
matter to the full Council for a final decision. 

 
STAGE 4 
 
Reference back to Cabinet 
 
Where the Overview and Scrutiny Committee decides to refer the decision back, the 
Cabinet must reconsider the decision in the light of any observations of the Committee. 
 
Where the Overview and Scrutiny Committee has requested more time to consider an 
issue, the Cabinet must have regard to the urgency, and to the Budget and Policy 
Framework Rules, when deciding whether to implement the decision. 

 
Reference to Head of Legal and Policy Development and/or Chief Finance Officer 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee may refer any called-in decision to the Head of 
Legal and Policy Development and/or the Chief Finance Officer if it considers it to be 
contrary to the policy framework or budget. The officer(s) will then submit a report on the 
matter to the next meeting of the Cabinet. A copy of this report will be sent to all members 
of the Council. No action may be taken in respect of the decision or its implementation 
pending that meeting. 

Page 23



 
If, in that report, the Head of Legal and Policy Development and/or the Chief Finance 
Officer is of the view that a decision referred to him/her by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee is not a departure from the policy framework or budget, the decision may be 
implemented immediately. A report to this effect will be submitted to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee for information. If, however, a referred matter is deemed to be a 
departure from the policy framework or the budget by the Head of Legal and Policy 
Development and/or the Chief Finance Officer the Cabinet has two options. 
 
Firstly, it may choose to adjust its decision to bring it within the policy framework or budget, 
in which case it can then be implemented. In these circumstances, the Cabinet would 
submit a report to the next meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee explaining its 
actions. 
 
Secondly, if the Cabinet does not wish to adjust its original decision, it must prepare a 
report to the full Council. This report must include the views of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. No action may be taken in respect of the decision or its implementation until 
the Council has met to consider the matter. 
 

Reference to Full Council 
 
Subject to the provisions above, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may require that 
any called-in matter which has been deemed to be (and remains) contrary to the policy 
framework or budget is referred to the full Council. The report to the full Council will set out 
the views of the Cabinet and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the advice of the 
Head of Legal and Policy Development and/or the Chief Finance Officer. The Council may: 

 

 Decide that the decision is within the existing policy framework and/or budget (in 
which case it can be implemented); or 

 Amend the financial regulations or policy concerned to encompass the decision 
(in which case it can be implemented); or 

 Agree that the decision is contrary to the policy framework or budget and require 
the Cabinet to reconsider the matter in accordance with the advice of the 
officer(s). 

Page 24



 
 

 
 

1. Can the decision 
actually be called-in? 

If the answer to any of questions 1(a)-(g) is “yes” then the decision can 
NOT be called-in. 

a) Does it relate to a non-executive function? 

b) Was it a non-key decision taken by an officer under delegated 
powers? 

c) Was it classified as an urgent decision? 

d) Has this issue been called-in in the last 6 months? 

e) Does the decision relate to an existing call-in (i.e. decisions taken 
in relation to a reference back)? 

f) Does the decision relate to the formulation of a policy or budget 
matter which requires full Council approval? 

g) Was it a decision taken by, or to be taken by, full Council? 

2. Was the decision 
in accordance with 
the Council’s policy 
framework? 

a) What is the relevant policy or strategy? 

b) Is the decision contrary to that policy? 

c) If yes, how? 

3. Was the decision 
in accordance with 
the agreed budget or 
budget procedures? 

a) Is there funding for the proposal in an agreed budget/capital 
programme? 

b) If no, have the rules for virement and supplementary estimates 
been observed? 

4. Was the decision 
taken in accordance 
with the principles of 
good decision-making 
(Article 12 of the 
Constitution)? 

a) Does the decision comply with the Council’s Constitution, i.e?  

 Articles of Constitution 

 Scheme of Delegation 

 Rules of Procedure 

 Codes and Protocols 

b) Was the decision reasonable within the common sense of the 
word, i.e. rational, based on sound judgement? 

c) Was the decision reasonable within the legal definition of 
“reasonableness”, i.e. was everything relevant taken into account, 
and was everything irrelevant disregarded? 

d) Was the decision proportionate, i.e. is the action proportionate to 
the desired outcome? 

e) Was the decision taken on the basis of due consultation? 

f) Was the decision taken on the basis of professional advice from 
officers? 

g) Were human rights respected and/or will the decision give rise to 
any human rights implications, i.e. without discrimination, the right 
of an individual to: 

 Liberty and security 

 The enjoyment of their property 

 A fair trial 

 Respect for private and family life 

 Freedom of thought, conscience and religion 

 Freedom of expression 

 Freedom of assembly and association, etc. 

h) When the decision was taken, was there a presumption in favour 
of openness? 

Appendix A to the Call-in Procedure Rules  

Page 25



5. Has the decision 
been well 
explained, i.e. do 
you need more 
information? 

a) Was it clear what the reasons for the decision were?  

b) Was it clear what the desired outcomes were? 

c) Was it clear what alternative options (if any) were considered? 

d) Was it clear why the alternative options were not chosen? 

e) Do you need any more information/clarification? 

 

Page 26



 
 
Call-in Protocol 
 
The following protocol is intended to formalise the conduct of call-in hearings and the 
preparation work carried out in the run-up to such a hearing. It should be noted, however, 
that the protocol may be varied by the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
to meet the requirements of any particular circumstances. 
 
Prior to the Call-in 
 
1. A meeting will take place between the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee, the first-named Member requesting the call-in, relevant 
officers, and the Head of Legal and Policy Development, at which a definitive list of 
speakers for the call-in hearing will be drawn up.  

 
2. A decision-taker’s statement may be published with the agenda for the meeting. 
 
3. A statement from the first-named Member on the call-in request will be published with 

the agenda for the meeting, should this person wish to provide such a statement. 
 
4. The first named Member on the call-in request and the decision-taker will be invited to 

the meeting, together with any other parties relevant to the decision-making process, 
for example Chairmen of other Committees or Panels, Portfolio Holders or officers. 

 
5. Any other relevant internal or external speakers will be invited to the meeting. 
 
6. Seven days’ notice of a request to attend the meeting will be given to all speakers.  

 
7. Prior to the meeting any Member who may have a conflict of interest, for example 

scrutiny members who may be scrutinizing a decision they were involved in taking, will 
be given relevant advice by the Monitoring Officer. 

Appendix B to the Call-in Procedure Rules 

Page 27



 
 
The Call-in meeting 
 
1. The call-in will be the first item of business on the agenda, in order that speakers are 

not kept waiting. 
 
2. Speakers will be placed around the table with the Committee if the space permits, but 

if there are a large number of speakers or other attendees at the meeting, they may be 
required to wait in a separate seating area or the public gallery 

 
Reasons for the Call-in 

 
3. The Members who called-in the decision will be invited to make a presentation 

outlining his or her main reasons for calling in the decision and what they feel should 
be reviewed. They shall be allowed up to 15 minutes in total to present their case. It 
shall be up to them to determine how they wish to use their time, they may ask one 

speaker to speak or share the time among several speakers as they see fit. A question 
and answer session will follow.  

 

Decision-taker’s response 
 

4. The decision-taker will be invited to make a presentation outlining his or her main 
reasons for making the decision. 15 minutes shall be allowed to respond on behalf of 
the decision-maker(s). It shall be up to them to decide how to use this allocation. The 
relevant Cabinet Member may make the presentation or they may divide the time between 

several speakers as they see fit. A question and answer session will follow. 
 
Other relevant speakers 

 
5. Any other parties relevant to the decision-making process, for example Chairmen of 

other Committees or Panels, Portfolio Holders or officers, will be invited to make 
presentations outlining their reasons for any recommendations to Cabinet or individual 
Cabinet Members on the issue concerned, or in the case of officers, their reasons for 
any recommendations or advice to Councillors. Question and answer sessions will 
follow. 

 
6. Any other relevant internal or external speakers will be invited to make a presentation 

to the Committee without interruption, for up to 3 minutes each, following which there 
will be a question and answer session. 

 
Consideration by the Committee  

 
7. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will then discuss the matter. Members may ask 

further questions of the Members who submitted the Call-in or the decision-makers during 
the debate. The Members making the call in and the decision-maker will not normally 
speak during the debate, except to answer questions.  

 
Summing-Up  
 
8. When the Chair considers that the matter has been debated for a reasonable length of 

time, both the decision-maker and one of the Members making the Call-in will be offered 
the opportunity to make any final comments on the matter and to sum up. The decision-

Appendix C to the Call-in Procedure Rules 

Page 28



maker will be invited to speak first, followed by one of the Members making the Call-in. 
Each side will be allowed five minutes for this purpose.  

 
The Vote  
 

9. Members will then be invited to move any amendments or additions to the reasons 
specified in the call-in request. Members may also move any specific recommendations or 

issues they would like the original decision-maker or Council to consider. Members must 
agree on the factors the decision-maker (or Council) is to be asked to consider. The 
matter may not be referred for reconsideration without reasons being given.  

 
10. The matter will then move to the vote. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee can decide 

to take one of the following courses of action: 
 

 To refer the matter back to Cabinet 

 To refer the matter to the Head of Legal and Policy Development and/or Chief 
Finance Officer where it considers the decision to be contrary to the policy 
framework or budget 

 To refer the matter to Full Council where any called-in matter is deemed to be (and 
remains) contrary to the policy framework or budget 

 
Advising the Overview and Scrutiny Committee of Action taken  
 

11. Where a decision has been referred back to the decision-maker (or Council), a report 
of actions taken as a result of the referral back will be presented to a future meeting of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  

Page 29



 
CALL-IN REQUEST PRO-FORMA 

 
Attention: Head of Legal and Policy Development  
 
REQUEST FOR CALL-IN 

 
Dated .................................................... 

 
I would like to call in the decision as detailed below: 
 
Decision making body or individual                                  Date decision made 
      
 
 
What decision do you want the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to consider? 
 
 
 
 
If the reason for the call-in is that the decision was outside the policy or budget 
framework, please give an explanation 
 
 
 
 
 
What action would you like to see the decision-maker take to address the concerns 
outlined in the call-in, or how should the original decision be varied? 
 
 
 
 
At what stage did you inform the Portfolio Holder or the Leader of the Council that 
you had concerns over this planned decision? If not a planned decision (i.e. if the 
decision did not appear on the Forward Plan), what attempts did you make to speak 
to the Portfolio Holder before calling in the decision? 
 

  

APPENDIX 4  

Page 30



Please state which principles of decision making has / have been breached (please 
tick) 

 Tick 

1. The decision was not reasonable within the common meaning of the word, 
i.e. it was not a rational decision based on sound judgement 

 

2. The decision was not reasonable within the legal meaning of 
“reasonableness”, i.e. all relevant considerations were not fully taken into 
account in reaching the decision and all irrelevant ones disregarded 

 

3. The decision was not proportionate (i.e. the action was not proportionate to 
the desired outcome) 

 

4. The decision was not taken on the basis of due consultation and 
professional advice from officers 

 

5. Human rights were not respected and consideration was not given as to 
whether the decision would give rise to any implications under the Human 
Rights Act 1998 and the European Convention on Human Rights 

 

6. The decision was not taken in compliance with Council’s schemes of 
delegation, financial regulations and contract procedure rules 

 

7. Careful consideration was not given as to whether there was a personal 
interest that should have been declared 

 

8. In the case of an executive decision taken by the Cabinet, or an individual 
Member of the Cabinet, or an Officer (where the decision is a key decision), 
a proper record of the decision was not made together with a record of the 
reasons for the decision, details of any alternative options considered and 
rejected and any conflicts of interest 

 

 
Reason for calling in the decision – please explain how the principle/s ticked above 
has/have not been adhered to. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Suggested Witnesses and documentation (please note that the final decision on 
witnesses to be invited and documentation to be considered at the call-in meeting will rest  
 
Suggested speakers and documentation (please note that the final decision on 
speakers to be invited and documentation to be considered at the call-in meeting will rest 
with the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee): 
 
 

 

 

Page 31



Members calling in the decision* 

1  
Signed....................................................................... 

 2  
Signed....................................................................... 

3  
Signed....................................................................... 

4  
Signed....................................................................... 

5  
Signed....................................................................... 

 
*NB Call-in can be requested by any 5 Members of the Council  
 

Page 32



 

Gloucester City Council 
Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2014/15 

(updated 20 March 2014) 
 

Item  Format Lead Member (if 
applicable)/Lead Officer 

Comments 

    

23 JUNE 2014 

Green Travel Plan Progress report Written report Cabinet Member for 
Environment 

Requested by the Committee 

City Centre Action Plan Update Written report Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration 

Requested by Committee  

Amey performance monitoring (to be 
confirmed) 

Written report Cabinet Member for 
Environment 

Requested by the Committee 

    

21 JULY 2014 

Performance report for Aspire Written report Cabinet Member for Housing, 
Health and Leisure 

Part of Committee’s annual work 
programme 

Performance report for Civica Written report Cabinet Member for 
Performance and Resources 

Part of Committee’s annual work 
programme 

    

15 SEPTEMBER 2014 

Performance report for Gloucester City 
Homes 

Written report Cabinet Member for Housing, 
Health and Leisure 

Part of Committee’s annual work 
programme 

    

    

13 OCTOBER 2014 

    

    

    
  

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 8



 

 
Item  Format Lead Member (if 

applicable)/Lead Officer 
Comments 

    

10 NOVEMBER 2014 

Annual Review of the Evictions Appeal 
Panel 

Written report Cabinet Member for Housing, 
Health and Leisure 

Part of Committee’s annual work 
programme  

    

    

1 DECEMBER 2014 

    

    

    

8 DECEMBER 2014 (BUDGET) 

Budget Proposals Written report Cabinet Members Part of Committee’s Annual work 
programme 

    

26 JANUARY 2015 

    

    

    

23 FEBRUARY 2015 

    

    

    

23 MARCH 2015 

    

    

    
 

P
age 34


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Review of 'Call In' Procedure
	8 Scrutiny Work Programme

